
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORTATION, AND 
NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE MEETING 

Wednesday, April 11, 2018 

Contents 

Agenda .................................................................................................................................... 2

Minutes from Previous Meeting ............................................................................................. 3

Study Timeline: Commission for Minority Affairs ................................................................... 6

Subcommittee Follow-Up Letter to Agency .......................................................................... 10

Agency Response to Follow-Up Letter ...................................................................................12
Bill Tracking and Hearing Attendance ............................................................................... 13
Policies ............................................................................................................................... 14
Training Costs .................................................................................................................... 60
CMA Report on Promulgation of Agency Regulations ....................................................... 61

Committee Contact Information .......................................................................................... 62

Agency Recommendations...................................................................................................... 7

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting
Page 1 of 62



AGENDA 

South Carolina 

House of Representatives 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT, TRANSPORTATION, 

AND NATURAL RESOURCES SUBCOMMITTEE 

The Honorable Bruce W. Bannister, Chair 

The Honorable Neal A. Collins 

The Honorable Mandy Powers Norrell 

The Honorable Robert L. Ridgeway III 

Wednesday, April 11, 2018

30 minutes after adjournment of the House 

321 - Blatt Building
Pursuant to Committee Rule 6.8, S.C. ETV shall be allowed access for internet streaming whenever 

technologically feasible. 

AMENDED AGENDA 

I. Approval of Minutes 

II. Discussion of the study of the Commission for Minority Affairs

III. Adjournment

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting
Page 2 of 62



 

MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING 

 

 

Economic Development, Transportation, and Natural Resources Subcommittee 

Thursday, February 22, 2018 
30 minutes after adjournment of the House 

Blatt Room 110 
Archived Video Available 

I. Pursuant to House Legislative Oversight Committee Rule 6.8, South Carolina ETV was allowed 
access for streaming the meeting.  You may access an archived video of this meeting by visiting 
the South Carolina General Assembly’s website (http://www.scstatehouse.gov) and clicking on 
Committee Postings and Reports, then under House Standing Committees click on Legislative Oversight.  
Then, click on Video Archives for a listing of archived videos for the Committee. 

Attendance 

I. The Economic Development, Transportation, and Natural Resources Subcommittee meeting 
was called to order by Chair Bruce W. Bannister on Thursday, February 22, 2018, in Room 110 of 
the Blatt Building. The following other members of the Subcommittee were present for either all 
or a portion of the meeting: Representative Mandy Powers Norrell and Representative Robert L. 
Ridgeway III. 

Minutes 
 

I. House Rule 4.5 requires standing committees to prepare and make available to the public the 
minutes of committee meetings, but the minutes do not have to be verbatim accounts of 
meetings.  It is the practice of the Legislative Oversight Committee to provide minutes for its 
subcommittee meetings. 

 

 
First Vice-Chair: 

Laurie Slade Funderburk 

 
Katherine E. (Katie) Arrington 

William K. (Bill) Bowers 

Neal Collins 

MaryGail K. Douglas 

Phyllis J. Henderson 

Joseph H. Jefferson Jr. 

Robert L. Ridgeway III 

Edward R. Tallon Sr. 

 

 

Jennifer L. Dobson 

Research Director 

 

Cathy A. Greer 

Administration Coordinator 

Chair Wm. Weston J. Newton 

 

Legislative Oversight Committee 

 

 

   

 

 

South Carolina House of Representatives 

 

Post Office Box 11867 

Columbia, South Carolina 29211 

Telephone: (803) 212-6810 • Fax: (803) 212-6811 

Room 228 Blatt Building 

 

 

 

 
Bruce W. Bannister 

Gary E. Clary 

Chandra E. Dillard 

Raye Felder 

William M. “Bill” Hixon 

Mandy Powers Norrell 

Tommy M. Stringer 

Robert Q. Williams 

Bill Taylor 

 

 

Charles L. Appleby IV 

Legal Counsel 

 

Carmen J. McCutcheon Simon 

Research Analyst/Auditor 

 

Kendra H. Wilkerson 

Fiscal/Research Analyst 

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 3 of 62



 

II. Representative Ridgeway makes a motion to approve the minutes from the February 8, 2018 
meeting.  A roll call vote is held, and the motion passes. 

Rep. Ridgeway’s motion to approve 
the minutes from the January 25, 2018 
meeting: 

Yea Nay Not Voting 

Rep. Collins    (absent) 

Rep. Norrell      

Rep. Ridgeway     

Rep. Bannister    

 

Public Testimony regarding the Commission for Minority Affairs (CMA) 

I. Chair Bannister states before hearing agency testimony, there are three constituents who have 
asked to address the Subcommittee. 

II. Chair Bannister reminds the constituents and agency personnel who were sworn in during prior 
meetings that they remain under oath.  

III. Chief Michelle Mitchum testifies her tribe is receiving retaliation measures since the October 
2017 meeting. She testifies that the CMA Native American Coordinator and the Executive 
Director advised the advisory committee there would not be a celebration of Native American 
Awareness Heritage Day. She states that she has spoken with the Wassamasaw and Etiwan 
Tribes, and they explained that the dispute between the tribes was caused by CMA. After 
continuously asking for email updates, Chief Mitchum has yet to receive any updates. Further, 
she testifies about many other issues that she has had with the Commission.  

IV. Chief Louie Chavis addresses the subcommittee and testifies to more issues with the 
Commission. He has issues with land acquisitions and the blatant disregard for the Native 
American people. He testifies that he has been approached by the Commission since the start of 
the study with claims of “intimidation.” He states there are no rules or guidelines to go by.  

V. Ms. Lisa McQueen-Starling addresses the subcommittee and testifies to the issues her tribe has 
experienced. She reads several quotes from the “United Nations Declaration of the Rights of 
Indigenous Peoples.” She testifies her hope was to work alongside CMA to develop a plan and 
strategy to pull their people out of poverty and to redress issues that have historical affected the 
community. She testifies that she filed that petition five years ago.  

  

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 4 of 62



 

Discussion of the Commission for Minority Affairs (CMA) 

I. CMA Director Thomas Smith provides opening comments, then provides testimony regarding 
the agency’s following performance measures: 

a. Statistical Reports 
b. Statistical Surveys 
c. Technical Assistance, Capacity 

Building and Outreach Service  

d. Training-External 
e. Training-Internal 
f. Research Partnerships 
g. Internal Planning Events

 

II. Ms. Marcy Hayden, Native American Affairs Coordinator, provides testimony regarding the 
agency’s following performance measures: 

a. Other Agency Reports and Documents 
b. Public Policy 
c. Events and Workshops 

 

III. Ms. Lauretha Whaley, Administrative Manager, provides testimony regarding the agency’s 
following performance measure: 

a. Funds Collected, Grants and other Agency Funded Partnerships 
 

IV. Members ask questions, which different agency representatives answer. Question topics 
include, but are not limited to: 

a. Public Surveys 
b. Bill tracking 
c. Grants 
d. Outreach 

e. Training 
f. Events 

 
V. Chair Bannister provides closing comments. 

 
VI. There being no further business, the meeting is adjourned.

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 5 of 62



STUDY TIMELINE: COMMISSION FOR MINORITY AFFAIRS 
2015 

August 7, 2015 Agency submits its Annual Restructuring and Seven-Year Plan Report, which is available online. 

2016 
March 30, 2016 Agency submits its Annual Restructuring Report, which is available online. 

September 2016 Agency submits its 2015-16 Accountability Report/2017 Annual Restructuring Report. 

2017 

May 10, 2017 
Full committee votes to make the agency the next agency for the Economic Development, Natural Resources, and 
Transportation Subcommittee to study.  Video of the meeting is available online. 

May 11, 2017 Agency receives notice that it has been selected for study. 

June 27 - July 28, 
2017 

Committee solicits input from the public about the agency in the form of an online public survey.  The results of the 
public survey are available online.   

September 2017 Agency submits its 2016-17 Accountability Report/2018 Annual Restructuring Report. 

September 29, 2017   Agency submits its Program Evaluation Report, which is available online. 

October 16, 2017 Committee holds public input meeting (Meeting #1) about this and other agencies. 

October 24, 2017 
Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #2) to discuss the agency's purpose; mission; vision; laws enforced; 
organizational structure; major program areas; and relationships with other agencies. 

November 13, 2017 Agency responds to public input at full committee meeting (Meeting #3). 

November 20, 2017 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #4) to discuss agency responses to Subcommittee follow-up questions. 

November 28, 2017 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #5) to discuss agency products, services, customers, and resources. 

December 19, 2017 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #6) to discuss agency products, services, customers, and resources. 

2018
January 25, 2018 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #7) to discuss agency products, services, customers, and resources. 

February 8, 2018 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #8) to discuss agency strategic plan and performance measures. 

February 22, 2018 Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #9) to discuss agency performance measures. 

April 11, 2018 (TODAY) Subcommittee meets with agency (Meeting #10) to discuss Subcommittee recommendations. 

Ongoing 
Public may submit written comments on the Oversight Committee's webpage on the General Assembly's website 
(www.scstatehouse.gov)  

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 6 of 62

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/


2. Please provide any recommendation, specific or
conceptual, the Commission has for statute or
regulation changes (i.e., deletion, revision, or addition)
that may facilitate its mission.

A. Deletion of Section 1-31-40 (5) of the agency’s
statute which states, “Provide the minority community
with assistance and information on Voting Rights Act
submissions in the State.”

Amend the regulation which mandates the composition
of the Native American Advisory Committee.

Received from CMA, 11/20/17

Agency Recommendation #1

Agency Recommendation #2

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 7 of 62



Received from CMA, 12/10/17
Agency Recommendation #3

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 8 of 62



Received from CMA, 12/10/17

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 9 of 62



 

SUBCOMMITTEE FOLLOW-UP LETTER TO AGENCY 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
February 27, 2018 

 

Via Email 

Chairman Kenneth Battle 

Director Thomas J. Smith 

South Carolina Commission for Minority Affairs 

2221 Devine St., Ste. 408 

Columbia, SC  29205 

 

RE: Follow up from Subcommittee’s February 22, 2018, meeting with the agency 

 

Dear Chairman Battle and Director Smith: 

  

The Economic Development, Transportation, and Natural Resources Subcommittee appreciates the agency’s partnership in 

the oversight process.  As follow up from the meeting on February 22, 2018, the Subcommittee requests that you provide 

the following information by Monday, March 12, 2018:   

 

1. The number of legislative committee meetings CMA staff attended related to the four bills tracked as part of 

performance measure number four. Please note if testimony was provided by CMA staff at any legislative 

committee meeting related to these bills. 

2. All current, written agency policies, including board policies. Please note in your response the last time the 

agency conducted a comprehensive review of its policies and if any of the policies are accessible to the public 

on the agency’s website. 

3. The cost to the agency of each training attended by CMA staff in 2017. 

 

  

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 10 of 62



Page 2  

Chairman Battle and Director Smith 

 

 

Thank you for your service to the citizens of South Carolina and for your continued cooperation with the legislative oversight 

process. We look forward to continuing our discussion of the Commission for Minority Affairs at the next Subcommittee 

meeting. 

 

Sincerely, 
 

 
 

Bruce W. Bannister 

Subcommittee Chair 

 

cc:  Economic Development, Transportation, and Natural Resources Subcommittee Members 

 

 

 

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 11 of 62



 

AGENCY RESPONSE TO FOLLOW-UP LETTER 
 

  

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 12 of 62



Response to Tracking of Bills and Attending Hearings 

S196-Human Trafficking- Staff attended hearings, but did not testify.  

S279-Small Minority Business- Staff did not attend committee or subcommittee hearings. Bill 
was introduced and sent to subcommittee with no additional hearings. Ms. Hayden monitored 
bill via SC Legislator website tracking tool. 

S356-State Recognition of Groups- Staff did not attend committee or subcommittee hearings. 
Bill was introduced and sent to subcommittee with no additional hearings. Ms. Hayden 
monitored bill via SC Legislator website tracking tool. 

S674- Workers Compensation Act- Staff did not attend committee or subcommittee hearings. 
Bill was introduced and sent to subcommittee with no additional hearings. Ms. Hayden 
monitored bill via SC Legislator website tracking tool. Ms. Hayden notified Mr. Smith and staff 
of the Human Affairs Commission of this bill as it appears this bill was intended for their 
agency.  

Ms. Hayden and staff provided the Executive Director and the Board of Commissioners updates 
regarding pending legislation at Board meetings. 

Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 13 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 14 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 15 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 16 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 17 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 18 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 19 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 20 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 21 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 22 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 23 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 24 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 25 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 26 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 27 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 28 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 29 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 30 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 31 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 32 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 33 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 34 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 35 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 36 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 37 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 38 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 39 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 40 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 41 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 42 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 43 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 44 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 45 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 46 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 47 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 48 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 49 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 50 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 51 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 52 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 53 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 54 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 55 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 56 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 57 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 58 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 59 of 62



Received from CMA, 3/12/18

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 60 of 62



CMA Report on Promulgation of Agency Regulations 

As part of its response to the Subcommittee’s follow-up letter, CMA provided a 2016 report by agency staff on the 
difference between promulgated regulations, bills, and provisos and the promulgation process. The intended 
audience was the agency’s board. This report can be accessed on the Legislative Oversight Committee website:  
http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/
MinorityAffairs/CMA_Regulations_Report.pdf

 
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 61 of 62

http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee/AgencyWebpages/MinorityAffairs/CMA_Regulations_Report.pdf


Committee Mission
Determine if agency laws and programs are being implemented and carried out in 
accordance with the intent of the General Assembly and whether they should be 

continued, curtailed or eliminated. Inform the public about state agencies.

Website: http://www.scstatehouse.gov/CommitteeInfo/
HouseLegislativeOversightCommittee.php

Phone Number: 803-212-6810

Email Address: HCommLegOv@schouse.gov

Location: Blatt Building, Room 228  
 

04.11.18 EDTNR Meeting 
Page 62 of 62


	Contents
	Agenda
	Minutes from Previous Meeting
	Study Timeline: Commission for Minority Affairs
	Agency Recommendations
	Subcommittee Follow-Up Letter to Agency
	Agency Response to Follow-Up Letter
	Bill Tracking and Hearing Attendance
	Policies
	Training Costs
	CMA Report on Promulgation of Agency Regulations

	Committee Contact Information



